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homeopathic school, to which for a brief period he
devoted himself exelugively. In eonnection with Dr.
Constantine Hering, of Philadelphia, and Dr. H. Det-
willer, of Ifaston, he in 1836 established the North
Anerican Academy of Homwopathy at Allentown,
which was the first hommopathic school of medicine
in America. He graduated from this institution on
the 14th of August, 1833, and subsequently, as one of
itd taculty, filled the chair of obstetries,

In 1880 he retired from active practice, having been
stceceded by his sons, Drs, William H. and George
M. Romig, the former of whom graduated from the
Medical Department of the University of Pennsyl-
vania in 1867, and from the Hahnemann Medical
College in 1871. (George M. received hiz diploma
from the University of Pennsylvania in 1868, and
from the Halimemann Medical College in 1870. They
are exponents in the practice ot both schools of med-
1¢ine,

Dr. Romig was early made a member of the State
Medical Bociety, though 1n later years not among 1ts
active workers, His political convictions are in har-
nony with the platform of the Republican party,
though he has found little leisure for participation in
the exciting arena of politics. He has been for years
an elder of the Presbyterian Chureh of Allentown,

Dr. William J. Romig, one of the best known med-
ical men of the county, was a younger brother ol
Dr. John Romig, and was born June 18, 1821, He
studied with his brother and at Jefferson Medical
College, and commenced practice at Catasauqua,
though he subsequently located at Allentown., He
retired from practice in 1872, and was preparing to
restine when he died suddenly of pnenmonia on April
10, 1883, aged nearly sixty-two years. Dr. Romig was
favorably thought of in a very wide cirele, not less for
his qualities as a man than becanse of his abilities as
a physiciun. He was one of the earliest and sturdiest
leaders in the anti-slavery movement, aud was fore-
most in almost every good cause, deeply interested in
Christianity and the welfare of the church, a strong
advocate of temperance, and a vigorous agitator for
the advance of the cause. Dr. Itomig was twice mar-
ried. His first wife, with whom he was united Dec.
9, 1845, was Miss Mary Rover, of Allentown, by whom
he had four children. He was murried o his second
wite, Miss L. Anna Malthews, of Philadelphia, Jan,
2, 1829,

The first person who aticnded to the medicinal
wants of the people in Weissenberg and the surround-
ing country was the Rev. John lelirich. His sue-
cessor was his son, Dr. John Henry Hellrich, who
was a very successful physician and enjoyed a large
practice.

Dr. Frederick A. Wallace, of Taston, went to
Hynemansville, in Welssenberg township, in 1345,
and practiced there until 1850, when he moved to
Philadelphia. Subsequently lLe removed to Fox
Take, Wis., where he now lives. He was succeeded

by Dr. IFrank Nice in 1852. Dr. Frederick Seiber-
ling, now of Lynn township, practiced in Weissenberg
abount eight years, dating from 1862, and H. A. Suylor
for four yvears subsequent to 1871, when he served a
term as prothonotary of Liehigh County, and then re-
tnrned to Hynemansville and resumed the duties of
his profesgion.  Dr. Joshuaa Seiberling began practice
in this loeality in 1875, and Dr, John Brunner about
the same time.

Joshuna Kern, a native of North Whilchall, studied
medicine with Dr. John Romig, of Allentown, and
eraduated in 1846 from the Jefferson Medical Col-
lege, commencing practice Immediately afterward at
what 1s now Oreficld, in South Whitehall. He is stil]
in practice.

Thomas B. Cooper, the son of Peter and Susannab
Cooper, was Dborn Dec, 29, 1823, at Coopershurg,
Lehigh Co., I’a. He, after a preliminary course of
atudy, received a thorough scholastic training at the
Pennsylvania College, Grettvsburg, and, choosing
medicine as a prolession, entered the Medical De-
partment of the University of Pennsylvania, {rom
which he graduated on the 1st of March, 1843, He
was, on the 14th of October, 1845, married to Miss
Elmina C. Shantz, whose children are Alice Blanche,
Osear F., Tilghman 8., Llewelivn H., Thomas I, amd
Elmina,

Dr. Cooper began his professional carcer at Coopers-
burg, and very speedily uchieved both reputation and
an extended practice. His love for his profession was
strong, and his ability to respond to the demands of a
great nunber of patients so remarkable that his field
of labor was supplied on his death by four physicians,
with practice sufficient for cach.

The doctor, az a relaxation from the arduons duties
of his profession, devoted much attention to the politi-
cal issues of the day. As a Democrat, he was in 1360
clected to Congress from the Sixth Congressional Dis-
trict, composed of Lelhigh and Bucks Counties, the
canvass being a very closely contested one, and sue-
cess the result of his untiring encrgy and personal
popularity,

Dr. Cooper, in hils busiitess methods, was thorough
and upright, and in all his professional carcer keenly
allve to the important interests intrusted to his skill
and judgment. He posgessed a vigorous mind, acute
perceptions, and great energy.  In his religious pref-
erences he was & Lutheran, having connected himself
with that church while a student at Gettysburg, His
death occurred April 4, 1862, at his home in Coopers-
burg.

Dr. Wiilliam Herbst 1s of German parentage, his
grandfather, John, having been a manufacturer of
German cloths in Mueselwitz, Saxony.  Among Lis
children were two sons, who emigrated to America,
—John G, a resident of Northampton County, and
Frederick William, who graduated from the Jef
ferson Medical College, Philadelphia, in 1827, and
sottled in P’ike township, Berks Co., where he prac-
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ticed for a continuous period of forty vears. Later
in life the city of Reading became his home, where
Lis death oceurred in 1880,

He murried Miss Catharine, daughter of George
Sehall, of Pike township, Berks Co., and had chil-
dren,—George, Mary {wifeof Rev, (. A. Hinterleitner,
of Pottsyille, Pa.), William, Hannal (Mrs. E. W, Gil-
bert, of Reading), and John {deceased). William
was born Sept. 24, 1833, in Pike township, Berks Co.,
and received his education at the Williston Seminary,
Lasthampton, Mass., after which he began the study
of medicine, and graduated from the Jefferson Medi-
enl College, Philadelphia, in 1855. He located at
Trexlertown, Upper Macungie township, and has
since enjoved an extended practice, His skillful treat-
went of the many forms of discase has brought him
into Intimate professional relutions with the leading
families in a large area of territory, and given him
an exelusive field in the village’ of his residence,
where he is the only physician. Thedoctor has made
a specialty of the science of botany, his attainments
having secured for him a professor’s chair in Muhlen-
berg College, Allentown, which he filled for seven
veurs. He has been sinee 1860 a member of both
the State and County Medical Socicties. He was for
thirteen years associated with the Lehigh Countv
almshouse as physician.  The doctor was married, in
1858, to Elnora B., daughter of David Schall, of
Trexlertown, Their children are H. Herbert, a prad-
uate of Muhlenberg College, and of the medical de-
partment of the University of Pennsylvania, who is
a practitioner at Wilmington, Del,, and one danghter,
Carrie. Dr. Herbst is a director of the Allentown
National Bank, and actively identified with the busi-
ness Interests of the township .in which he resides.
In religion he iz a Lutheran, and member of the
Lutheran Chureh of Trexlertown. In politics he is
a Democrat, but not active in the arena of politics.

Auron Miller, M.D., traces his lineage for several
generations to Christian Miller, Sr., who was born
June §, 1706, and died July 11, 1785, His son
Christian, Jr., was born Jan. 6, 1741, and died Oct.
24, 1763, The birth ot Peter, son of the lagt named,
and grandfather ot Dr. Aaron Miller, veceurred Jan.
19, 1772, and his death Aug. 22, 18565, He was
marrted to Maria Bachman, daughter of Nicholas
Bachman, with whom he spent sixty-two vears of
married life. His son Peter was born Dec. 4, 1802,
and married Magdalena, daughter of the late Joseph
Haeger. Their children are Maria L. (married to
Levi Krauss), William F. Miller (deceased), Matilda
(married to Hon. Samuael J. Kistler), Joseph F.
Miller {deceased}, Owen H. Miller, Aaron 8. Miller,
M.D., Edward P. Miller, M.D., Sophia R. (inarried
to Dr. William (. M, Seiple, of Lehighion), and
Sarah A. Miller (deceased).

Aaron, the subject of this sketeh, was born July 1,
1839, in Saegersville, Lehigh Co., Pa., where his early
life was passed. He received his earliest edueation at

the village school, and later became a pupil of the
leading school of Allentown, atter which he prose-
cuted his studies at Kingston, Luzerne Co., Pa. He
early decided upon a professional carcer, and in 1859
began the study of medicine with Dr. David .
Mosser, of DBreinigsville, Tehigh Co., which was
continued with Dr. D. D. Shade, of Steinsville, Ia.
He attended lectures at the Medical College of the
University of New York, and graduated from that
mstitution in the spring of 1862, He first located at
Germansville, Pa., and after a successful practice of
two years removed to Saegersville, where he has since
followed bis prolession. From the first Dr. Miller
enjoyed an extended practice, which has alsn been
successtul and luerative.  Like most country pruc-
titloners he engages in a general practice, including
stich occasional cases of surgery as come under his
observation. e is a close student, drawing his
wisdom not less from experience than from intelli-
vent reading of the standard works of the day. The
doctor was married in 1863, to Miss Sarah K., daugh-
ter of William Mosser, of Albany, Berks Co. Their
children are Cora A., DPeter W., Muggie 3., Sophia
R., and Franklin A. The doctor is in politics a Re-
publican, but so exclusively devoted to his profession
as to have little leisure for matters of public concern.
He is the owner of 4 productive farni, and is also a
director of the Saegersville Slate Mining and Manu-
facturing Company, and engaged in other business
operations. He is in religion 4 member of the Ger-
man Reformed Chnrch, of Heidelberp,

Jacob 8. Shimer, M.D., son of Charles B. Shimer,—
horn in Shimersville, in Upper Milford, April 4, 1836,
—studied medicine in the University of Pennsylvania,
and graduated in the spring ot 1857, The same year
Le entered into partnership with Dr. Samuel R, Rit-
tenhouse, in Macungte, where he practiced medicine
for eleven months., Married the same year Miss Caro-
lina C. Bmith, of Philadelphia. Renioved in the vear
1858 to Bethlehem, where he practiced hix profession
for only a few months, and removed to hix native
place (Shimersville}, and practiced medicine for about
six years. He sold his property in 1865 {0 Dr. A,
M. Sigmund. In 1863 Dr. Shimer united himself
with the Evangelical Association, and was licensed
in the spring of 1866 as a minister of the gospel. He
continued fo preach the gospel in several cirenits
of the church, in Montgomery County, Camden,
N. J., and Philadelphia for several vears, He was
then compelled to resign his ministerial charce on
acecount of poor heulth, and returned to his medical
protession, and is since practiving medicine in Phila-
delphia, Besides his medical business, he has been
zince 1880 a corresponding editor of a non-sectarian
quarterly magazine, Vievteljalirselrift fir Wissenschaft-
fiche und Proftische Theologie {in German), published
by Lauecr & Yost, Cleveland, Ohio,

Dr. Albert M. Sigmund, son of Frederick Sigmund,
the ironmaster, was born in Upper Milford on Feb.
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97, 1839. He studied medicine in the University of
Pennsylvania, and graduated in 1360; went in prac-
tice the same year with Dr. J. H. Dickensheid, n
Lower Milford; went the same year, when his father
died, in partnership with his brother Henry, and pur-
chased their father’s furnace (Hampton Furnace}, and
became also an ironmaster. In 1863 he was commis-
sioned surgeon in the Union army for about two years,
In 1865 he purchased the residence of Dr. Jacob 5.
Shimer, situated in Shimersville, where he practiced
medicine over seven years, and died April 10, 1872,
aged thirty-three years, one month, thirteen days.

Dr. Theodore C. Yeager, son of the Hev. Joshua
Yeager, studied medicine with Dr. Charles L. Mar-
tin, of Allentown; graduated from the University
of Pennsylvania, and practiced in Allentown until
hiz death, Jan. 14, 1874, at the age of thirty-five years.
He was elected mayor of the city in 1873.

Dr. Charles Appel, born in 1841, studied medicine
in the Pennsylvania University, and went 1n practice
in 1872 in Zionsville, in Upper Milford, and 1s still
practicing there.

Dr. Robert €. King, born in 1854 in Northampton
County, studied medicine in the University of Penn-
sylvania ; graduated in 1875. During the last eight
vears he has been a practicing physician in Limeport,
in Lower Milford.

History of Homeopathy in Lehigh County.'—
Homeeopathy was introduced into Lehigh County,
in the fall of the year 1830, by two Lehigh County
men, Dr. John Romig, of Allentown, and Rev. John
Helfrieh, of Weissenberg township. Dr. Romig, who
remains with us to thiz day as one of our most es-
teemed citizens, had up to that time Dbeen an allo-
pathic physician. As such he was very popular und
had a large practice. Rev. Helfrich ministered to
the spiritual wants of several congregations in this
and adjoining countiezs. Both gentlemen had been
induced to take up the new system of medicine by
Dr. William Wesselhoeft, of Bath, Northampton Co.,
who, before his conversion, had also been an allo-
pathic physician of great ability.

Dr. Wesselhoeft was among the first homeopathic
physicians in this country, and became an enthusiastic
advocate of the new systen. He Lad seen the evil
effects of allopathic practice, and with Indomitable
will set himself to the task of making a change for
the hetter. It was in the fall of the vear 1530 that lLe
began to make weekly visits to the house of Rev. Hel-
frich, in Weissenberg, for the purpose of instructing
the latter in homaopathic practice. Here a number
of patients were regularly present, so that the new
healing systeni could at once be put to a. practical test.
The results of this clinic and dispensary were very
encouraging, and these¢ meetings were kept up until
Aug. 23, 1834. On this day was organized a society,
known as ““ The Homoepathic Society of Northampton

1 By F. J. 8lough, M.D.

and Adjacent Counties,” which, of course, included
Lehigh. The members from Lehigh were, besides
Dr. Romig and Rev. Helfrich, two German physicians,
Dr. Joseph Pulte and Dr. Adolph Bauer. Dr. Pulte
had Litherto practiced in the village of Trexlertown
for a short time as a homosopath. He is now living
in Cincinnati, Ohio, where he is considered one of the
foremost homopathists of the ¢ity, and where the Pulte
Homaopathic Medical College has been esiallished
in his honor. Dr. Bauer practiced homeopathy for a
short time in Lynn township, this county.

The Homeopathic Society held regular meetings
at Betlilehem, Allentown, and at the residences of
its members. Its objects were the advancement of
homaezopathy among the profession, interchange of
experience, and mutual improvement. The result of
these meetings was the establishment of a homeo-
pathic schicol at Allentown, which its founders called
“The North American Academy of the Homeepathic
Healing Art.” This was the first homeopathic medion!
college in the world. It was founded on the 10th of
April, 1835, the eightieth anniversary of the birth
of Dr. Hahnemann, the celebrated founder of the
homeeopathic system,

Some time previous to this Dr, Constantine Hering
had begun the practice of homeopathy in Philadel-
phia. He was requested to come to Allentown and
be president of the new college. He accepted the
call, and became the leading spirit of the institution.
The faculty of the academy comprised the following
gentlemen: Drs. Hering, William Wesselhoeft, H.
Freytag, John Romig, J. H. Pulte, and Henry Det-
willer. The last named resided at Hellertown, North-
ampton Co. He was the man who, on the 24th of
July, 1828, had prescribed the first dose of hommo-
pathic medicine ever given in this State. The remedy
was pulsatilla, and was given to a lady at Bethlehem
on whom several doctors had tried all their remedies
withoutsuceess. Dr. Detwiller cured her very speedily
by the use of the above-named remedy.

The course of instruction followed in the Homeeo-
pathic Academy was of a high standard, and given
entively in German. Its annual session lasted from
the 1st. of November to the 31st of August. The
buildings cecupied by the school werc three stories
high, and had two wings, each sixty by forty feet.
While it was in operation several homeeopathic books
werc translaled from the German, and a monthly jour-
nal known as the (brrespondenzbiatt der Hombopati-
tschen Aerzie was published.

The academy continued to flourish for about six
years, when, unfortunately, its treasurer, Mr. John
Rice, became financially embarrassed. Mz, Rice up
to this time had been a man of high standing in the
community, and was cashier of the Northampton
Bank, which was located at Allentown. This bank
failed, and a gencral panic followed. As Allentown
then was bub a small country town, with no prospect
of an early escape from the results of the panic, the
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above-named medical gentlemen thought it best to
separate and Introduce homwopathy into different

sections of the country. Acecordingly, Dr. Hering, i

the president of the scademy, removed to Philadel-
phia, where he becaine very eminent, and took a lead-
ing part in the organization of the Homceopathic
Medical College of Pennsvlvania, Dr. Wesselhoeft
removed to Boston. There he became one of the
most prominent homeeopathists of that city, and at

his death Teft his sons to perpetuate the honor of his |

name. Dr. Pulte, as before stated, went to Cincin-
nati, where he still resides as one of the most honored
pliysicians of the West, Dr, Romig remained in
Allentown, and Dr. Detwiller subscquently removed

from Hellertown to Faston, where he remains to this

day, being known and respected throughout the en-
tire Lehigh Valley. There is no doubt that the ac-
tion of these men in thus separating and introducing
their niedical system into necw parts of the country
was o wise one, as the result was for the benefit of a
nuch greater part of the population.

The only homwopathic physicians remaining in the
county after the close of the academy were Dr. John
Romig and Rev. John Helfrich, who had graduated
at the academy during its existence herc. Their
number was not inereased until 1846, when Dr. J.
Henry Helfrich, son of Rev. John IHelfrich, who
had just graduated at the Pennsylvania Medical
College, in Philadelphia,—there was no homaeo-
patlic school in existence at that time,—began to
practice at Kern’s Mill, Lehigh Co. A few years
Jater he took up his father’s practice in Weissenberg,
Here he remained until 1858, when he removed to
the village of Togelsville, Lehigh Co. TIn 1866 he
left this place and went to Kutztown, Berks Co.,
where he practived for eleven years. In the sprine
of 1877 he sold out his business in Kutztown, and
canme to Allentown, where he is :till located as an
avtive praciitioner, Dr. Helfrich is a man of won-
derful endurance. It is doubtful whether any physi-
cian in the connty has worked harder during his life
in the practice of his profession. Wherever hLie lo-
cated e had w very extensive practice. He devoted
his whole time to his chosen work, and no outside
influences had any charms for him.

In 1849, Tev. John Ilelfrich, M.D., published a
German work on Lomeopathic veterinary practice.
This was the fiisf book on this subjeet published in this
coungry,

From 1846 to 1862 no physicians in this county took
up homaopathy exclusively, though there were several
who practiced it alony with the old system. Such
were Dr. Charles I Martin, of Allentown, and Dr.
Samuel R, Rittenhouse, of Millerstown, now Macun-
gie.  About the yenr 18G5 the latter removedl to
Reading, where he became an exclusive homceop-
athist, and one of the Jeading physiciany of that city.

During the same period Dr. William TFlerbst, of

Trexlertown, and Dr. Joshua Kern, of Siegersville,

‘ began to practice homeeopathy to some extent, as they
- have continued to do until the present day.

Since 1835 many lamilics in the county have pro-
. cured works on donestic medicine, based on the new
- system, together with a case of homwopathic reme-
dies. In this way many who had ne homeeopathic
doctor in their vicinity have been able to cure their
own allments and to prevent serious illness.

In the beginning of 1860, Fravk J. Slough, of
Claussville, this county, began the study of medicine,
- and of homcopathy in particular, with Dr. J. Henry
| Helirich, then residing at Fogelsville. On the 3d of
. March, 1862, he graduated from the Homeeopathic
- Medical College in Philadelphia as the first graduate
of that institution in this county. Within a month
thereafter Dr. Slongh entered into partnership with
his preceptor at Fogelsville. In this position he
remalned until November, 1864, when Dr. Helfrich
removed to Kutztown, leaving his partner, who had
shortly before become his son-in-law, alone at the
former place. Dr. Slough continued to practice at
Fogelsville until October, 1875, when he left that field
in charge of his brother, Dr. Chester Slough, and
came to Allentown. Here he established, in ¢onnec-
tion with his profesgional practice, a homeeopathic
pharmacy, locating it at No. 845 Hamilton Street,
corner of Ninth. This sort of pharmacy was then a
new thing, not only in Allentown, but In all East-
ern Pennsylvania, except Philadelphia. [t naturally
caused quite a sensation, as it was not a small affair,
but a large and well-stocked drug-store, attractive and

fully up to the times, or rather ahead of the times, as
they were then. It proved a complete suceess, and
powerfully inflnenced the community in favor of
homoeopathy, Meanwhile, Dr. Slough’s professional
practice increased so much that in February, 1877, he
suld the pharmacy to Dr. J. Henry Helfrich, who at
that time moved into this city from Kutztown. Dr.
Helfrich continued the business at the same place for
several years, when, hig practice having also become
quite extensive, he gave it into the possession of his
daughter, Mrs, A. M. Slough, wife of Dr. F. J.
Slough.

When Mrs, 5lough had taken charge of the phar-
macy she devoted her time almost exclusively to the
advancement of the business. Her husband, Dr, T,
J. Slough, still continues a large practice. He is a
member of the American Institute of Hommopatly,
of the State Medical Society of Pennsylvania, of the
Homeopathie Society of the Lehigh Valley, and
of the Homeopathic Pharmaceutical Association of
Pennsylvania.

In 1866 Lhomeopathy began to gain new advocates
in this county. Quite a number of physicians took
up the new system. Some followed it almost exclu-
sively, while others practiced homowopuathy or allo-
pathy according to the preference of their patients.
In the spring of 1866, Dr. Constantine H. Martin
started in homeeopathic practice with his father, Dr,
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Charles L. Martin, at ths corner of Seventh and
Walnut Streets, Allentown. He remains there to this
day, being now associated with his brother, Dr.
Charles D. Martin, who graduated in 1867. Both
have an extensive practice and are highly esteemed
by the community.

In 1867, Dr. M. J. Lichtenwallner, of Upper Ma-
cungie, graduated from the Homeopathic College of
Pennsylvania, For several years lLie practiced in the
village of Milierstown (now Macungie}, but becom-
ing tired of his profession, he abandoned it entirely
and entered into other business,

In 1870 and 1871, Drs, William H. and George M.
Romig, sons of Dr, John Romig, who lias heen men-
tloned, began the practice of medicine with their
father in this city, where theyv remain to this day,
both enjoving a large and remunerative practiee.
For the past few ycars Dr. George M. Romig has
made a specialty of treating dizseases of the eye.

In the spring of 1869, Willium Chester Slough, of
Claussville, graduated frony the Hahnemmann Medical
College of Philadelphia, Soon after he began to
practice at Fogelsville, this eounty, with his brother,
Dr. F. J. Slough. This partnership continued until
1875, when the latter removed to Allentown, and Dr.
Chester Slough took their united practice to himself.
He remsained at Fogelsville until the winter of 1882,
when he went to Emaus, where he has since built up
a large practice,

About the year 1870, Dr. Francis Freytag, a Ger-
man, who had practiced homeopathy in the Western
States, canile to Allentown and succeeded in establish-
ing a good practice, especially in the treatment of
chronic cases, Dr, Freytag died here Sept. 23, 1882,

Dr. Daniel Yoder, a native of this county, and a
graduate of the Pennsylvania Medical College, class
of 1838, began to practice at Catasauqua as an allo-
pathist. He continued thus more or less until about
1870, when he gradually became a convert to homoe-
opathy, and at last adopted the new system exclu-
sively. He has a large practice, in which he is very
suceessful, and is highly honored by the community.
He was the first president of the Lehigh Valley
Homeeopathic Society ; he is 4 member of the Amer-
ican Institute of Homoopathy and of the State
Medical Society of Pennsylvania.

In the spring of 1866, Dr. W. A, Hassler, 4 native of
this connty, graduated from the Jefferson Medical Col-
lege in Philadelphia as an allopathist. He settled in
Allentown, where he also became a convert to the
new system. His praetice is large and remunerative,
and he enjoys the respect and confidence of the com-
munity. Heis a member of the American Institute
of Hommopathy and of the Homeopathic Medical
Society of Pennsylvania, also president of the Lehigh
Valley Homeeopathic Society and of the Homieeopathic
Free Dispensary in this city.

On the 10th of March, 1875, M. J. Holben, of Liynn
township, this county, graduated from the Hahne-

mann Medical College of Pennsylvania. He com-
menced practice at Slatington, succeeding Dr. J. G,
(Grosscup, also a native of Lynn, and a graduate of
the Homeeopathic College. Dr. Grosscup had prae-
ticed at Slatington for about six years, and now re-
moved to Reading, where, in addition fo his regular
practice, he opened a homeeopathic pharmacy. Dr.
Holben remains at Slatington, where his services are
largely in demand. He is a member of the Pennsyl-
vania and the Lehigh Valley Homeopathic Societies,

On the 10th of March, 1875, John H. Helfrich,
son of Rev. W. A, Helfrich, of Fogelsville, graduated
at the Hahnemann Medieal College of Philadelphia,
He located at Emaus, where he continued to practice
until the winter of 1882, when lhe accompanied his
father on a trip to Florida. Returning after a few
months, he settled at Fogelsville, associating with hig
brother, Dr. Calvin Helfrich. The latter is a graduate
of the Hahinemann Medical College in Philadelphia,
and of the New York Homeeopathic College. These
two brothers have an extensive practice.

In March, 1878, Dr. T. D. Koons, from Cherryville,
Northampton Co., graduated from the Halhmemann
Medical College. Several years later he set up his
practice in Macungie, Lehigh Co.

Dr. H. Lincoln Kistler, of Allentown, graduated
at the Hahnemann Medical College in the spring of
1883, and is now practicing in this eity. His resi-
dence is at No. 115 North Ninth Street. He is 2
member of the Lehigh Valley Homeeopathie Society.

We might mention a number of other homeeopathic
physiciang who are natives of this county, but not
practicing within its limits. Among these are Dr. C.
B. Kuen, of Claussville, who regides in Philadelphia;
Dr. Levi J, Kuen, of the same place, who 1s located
at Reading ; and Dr. L. R. Lentz, of Fogelsviile, now
at Fleetwood, Berks Co. |

In Allentown, the Lehigh Valley Homaeopathic
Medical Society was organized on the 7th of April,
1881, Dr. Daniel Yoder was elected president, and
Dr, F. J. Blough, secretary. This society now has
twenty members, and comprises the territory lying
between Easton and Mauch Chunk.

In 1881 the Homeeopathic Pharmaceutical Soclety
of Pennsgylvania was organized in Allentown by the
election of Dr. F. E. Boericke, of Philadelphia, as
president, and Dr. F. J. 8Slough, of Allentown, as
secretary. The objects of this assoclation are the
advancement of homeeopathi¢c pharmaceutics.

Recognizing the necessity of a dispensary, in which
the poor of the city could obtain medicine and medi-
cal treatment free of charge, the homamopathists of
Allentown organized for the purpose, and in Novem-
ber, 1883, opened a Free Homeeopathic Dispensary.
This institution, located at No. 34 North Seventh
Street, occupies three rooms, one of which is used for
the reception of patients, the other two as consulting-
rooms. It is open daily from three to four .M. The
different classes of diseases are there treated by dif-
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ferent physicians, who may be consulted there on
certain fixed days, Huuodreds of poor, suffering people
have availed themselves of this opportunity to re-
ceive both medicine and medical advice, and the
Hommopathic Dispensary is recognized as an insti-
tution that is doing a noble work in the interest of
humanity.

From the preceding skcteh it will be seen that
Lehigh deserves great credit for what she has done
in the interest of homeopathy. This new system of
healing was introduced here at a comparatively early
time, and to-day numbers o many active and carnest
adherenis, both in and out of the medical profession,
that its future suceess and progress ave amply assured.

List of Lehigh Physicians.—Following is a list of
physicians registered in the county of Lehigh, with
place and date of graduation and residence:

Williams 8. Herbst, Jefferson Medical College, Marcl: 10,1855, Trexler-
town. "

Havvey Y. Horn, Jefferson Medical College, March 12, 1879, Coplay.

Clharles J, Keim, Univorsity of Denngylvania, March 12, 1875, Cata-
saL O,

Georwe M. Romig, Uuiversity of Pennsylvania, 1868, Hahnemann Med-
ical College, 1870 Allentown,

John Romig, Tuiversity of Ponnsylvania, April 5, 1325,

N.T. Hallinan, University of Penusylvania, March 30, 1862,

Frank 1. Sloneh, Homwmopathic dledical College, Mareh 5, 1562,
town.

W, Jerome Tochman, University of Pennsylvania, March 14, T5TL
Allentown,

Willinmn B, Drdman, University of Penusylvania, DMarch 15, 1560.
Mucungie,

Peter N. G. T. Meyer, Girtingen, 1865 5 Groninget, 1566.

M, 1., lornbeck, University of Pennsylvania, March 1T, 1805,
SATILLL.

Frank . Brdmann, University of Peousylvania, March 10, 1866, Centre
Vallay,

enry 11, Beioel, Jeflorson Medieal College, March €7, 1867, Catasauqua.

Willjan J, Romig, Jelferson Medical College, March 20,1545, Allentown.

Willinm . X, Slough, Halmemann College, Murch 3, 1868, Fogelsville.

John H. Helfrich, Medical College of Penmsylvania, March 4, 1846,
Alleutown.

g, (. D, Yorel, University of Pennsylvania, March 12,1874, Fogelsville.

Albert J, Erdman, Jeflerson Bedical Collexe, 1874, Baegersville,

Henry Helfrich, practiced in this ¢ity sinee 18526, Allentown.

William H. Romig, University of Pennsylvania, Mareh 14, 1867 5 Hah-
nemain College, Mareh 10, 1871, Allentown. _

William A, Ilassler, Jufferson Medical College, BMarch 10, 1566.  Allen-
town,

Alfred J. Martin, University of Pennsylvania, Mavch, 1857, Allentown,

Thomag E. Cooper, Louizville Medical College, Feb. 25, 1581,
bure. :

Daniel Yoler, Medical College of DPennsylvania, March 6, 1858, Cata-
RATU 1R,

J. A. Fetherolf, Jefforson Medica! College, March, 1880,  Slatington.

Monuroe J. Ilolben, Hahuemann Medieal College, March 16, 1875.
Slatinzton.

F, W, Ouig, University of Glasgow, March 30, 1562, Catasaugna.

&, A. Apple, Jefferson Modical College, March 12, 13689, Allentown,

Henry A, Grim, University of Peunsylvania, March 31, 1855, Allen-
town.

Jotn 4. Laress, University of Pennsylveania, March 13, 1862, Coopers-
Lary,

W. K. Histler, Bellevie Hospital Medical College, 1868,  Germansville,

Lobert (. King, Bellevue Hospital Medienl College, 18376, Limeport,

Allentown,
Neffsyille,
Allen-

Allentown.
Cata-

Coopers-

Philip R. I'ulm, Jetferson Medical College, March 24, 1846, Allentown.
M. J. Kline, University of Pennsylvauiz, March 13, 1875, (Guthaville,
Aaron & Miller, University of Naw York, 1862. Basgevsville,

Themus (3, Nagle, Long Island bollege Hogpital; 1870, Allentown,
Edwin G. Mavtin, University of Penngylvania, Mareh 20, 1856, Allen-
town.

Charles L. Martin, University of Pennsylvania, April 2, 1541, Allen-
towwr,

Wilson 8. Berlin, Jefferson Medical College, March 12, 1878, Allen-
FOW L.

Charles D. Martin, Bellevue Hospital Medical College, March 1, 1867,
Allentovn.

Const. H. Martin, Bellevue Iospital Medical College, March 1, 1866,
Allentown,

John Trumbower, stateraent and affidavit filed. Friedensville.

Robert W. Young, Jofferson Medieal College, March 11, 1875, Slating-
toda,

Jacoly X. Miller, University of Pennsylvania, March 14, 1863, Slating-
ful,

J. D. Christman, University of Pennsylvania, Marveh 10,1876, Allen-
towiI.

Maulilon B. Dill, Jefferson Medical College, 1881, Shinlersville,

John 1. Kocher, University of Pennsylvania, March 13, 1809, Crock-
arsport.

T. D. Koons, Hahnemann Medicat College, March, 1578, Marungic,

Thetmas T. Martin, University of Pennsylvania, Blarch, 1877, Ajlen-
towr.

Daniel Hiestand, University of Pennsylvania, March 16, 1851, Mechan-
iesville,

P. E. 8tem, University of Penusylvania, March, 1881, Coplay.

F. 0. Ritter, University of Maryland, Mareh 3, 18581, New Tripoli.

Tames D. Graver, Bellevio Hospital Medical College, Murveh, 1870,
Steinville.

A, N. Miller, Bellevuo 1lospital Medical College, March 15, 1875, East
Texas.

H. A. Saylor, statement and affidavit filed. Heynemansvillo,

J. W. Sieberling, Bellevue Togpital Bedical College, Feb. 21, 1573,
Heynemansville.

John A. H. Helfrich, Hahnemann Medical College, March 18, 1873,
Emaus,

H. 8. Clemens, Tniversity of Pennsylvania, dMarch 12, 1562, Allentowin.

Josiah Kern, Jeffersun Medical Uolloge, 1846, Orefield.

Fdwin P. Miller, Bellevue dMedieal Colleze, Feb. 28, 1566, Saareraville.

S IX. Berndt, Jefferson Madical College, March 10, 1563, Alhuartis,

J. D, Erdman, University of Pennsylvania, March 12, 1572, Maucunyie,

A. B, Fetherolf, Bellevue Hospital Medical College, 15863, Litzonberg.
J. A. Koch, Jeffersan Medical College, March 11, 1874, Egypt.

“amuel Young, statement and affidavit Med,  Allentown,

7, (. Sisberling, University of New Yorlk, March 9, 1862, Lynuviile.

E. H. Dickenshied, University of Penpsylvania, March 14, 1831, Lower
Milford.

D. & 8hade, University of Pennsylvania, 1356, Stetusville,

D. D. Fritch, University of Pennsylvania, March 11, 1876, Macungie,

Francig Frietag, statement and aflidavig filed.  Allentown.

E. H. Mohr, Jefferson Medical College, March 12, 1881, Albuitis,

John H, Dickenshied, University of Peunsylvania, April 3, 1347, TLowor
Milford.

John H. Diller, Jefferson Medical Cullege, March, 1868. Emaus.

E, M. 8. Beaver, Jeffarson Medisal College, March 11, 1574, Macungis.

Thomas A. Strosser, University of Penngylvania, March 14, 180T, AMa-
cungie.

L. B. Balliet, University of Pennsylvania, April 1, 1864, TUnionville.

L. 8. Colling, Eelectic Medical College, March 18, 1870, Friedensville,

W. P, Kistler, Bellevue Medical College, Marvch 1, 15067, Schuecksyille,

D. W. W. Follweiler, Medical Tospitul College, March 18, 1870. Lynn-
nort,

T. &. Steinmetz, Long T and College Hospital, June 26, 1867, IHoken-
duurgua,

. L. Reichard, Jefferson Medical College, 1864,  Allentown.

J. K. Bowers, Anterican University, December, 1874, Allentown.

. T, Sowden, University of Michigan, March 26, 1870, Slatedale,

.T. Trumbauer, Jefforson Medical College, March 12, 1862, Coopers-

huarg.

0. Fegelay, University of Pennaylvanin, March 14, 1867, Allentown.

N. Ritter, Jeflorson Medieal College, March 9, 1861, Breinipsville.

C. H. Apple, Jefferson 3edical College, uarch 18, 1551. Zionsville.

F. M. Taubach, Bellevue Iospital Medical Collepe, March 1, 1868
Allentown,

W, H. Hartzell, Jeftereon Medieal College, Blarch 13,1873, Allentown.

W. E. Loyd, Jefferson Medical College, 1878, Catasuuqua.

Charles Meyer. Statem ent and affidavit filed. 3Macungie.

James W. Cole, Jefferson Medical College, March 12, 1882, Allentawn.

Roger Hunt, University of Pennsylvania, March 15, 1830, Catasangua.

E
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William A. Rentzheimer, University of Pennsylvania, March 15, 1830,
Friedensville.

Palm E, lelfrieh, Ilahnemann Medical College, Philadelphia, March 7,
1880 ; Homeceopathic Medical College of New York, March 5, 1382,
Fogelavilie.

Abraham L. Kistler, Hahnemann dedical College, Philadelphia, M arch

7, 1883, Allentown.

Thomas A. Schorer, Jeflerson JMedical College, April 2, 1853, Slating-
tom,

Apgnes M. Slough. Allentown.

W, IT. TTamersly, University of Pennsylvauia, 1843, Catasaugua.

Medical Societies.—The Lehigh County Medical
Society was originally organized in 1853, at a meeting
held at Dr. Charles H. Martin’s officc.  Dr. BMartin
was elected president, Dr. David O. Moser, ot Brein-
igsville, secrotary, and Dr. Thomax Cooper, of Coop-
ershurg, treasurer, Among the first members were
Dr. Leisenring, of Macungie, Dr. William Kohler, of
Igypt, and Dr. Tilghman H. Martin. The soclety
maintained an cxistence for 4 few years and was then
dishanded. It was reorganized in 1858, and since that
time has been in quite a flourishing condition. The
records show the names of oflicers and members only
since 1865, The members in that year were A, Al
Fryman, S, W. Balliet, W. B. Frdman, J. P. Kohler,
H. A. Hallman, H. Haberackon, William Herbst, N.
S. Kohler, J. Laross, 5. W, Rueh, H. K. Hartzell,
M. E. Hornbeck, N. R. Ritter, . L. Reechorn, A. F.
Miller, A. J. Martin, Shade, C. W. Williams,
E. G. Martin, H, T. Martin, T. H. Martin, ¥. C.
Seiberling, T. C. Yeager (died Jan. 14, 1874), E. F.
Steckel. Accessions have since been made as follows:
1868, A. P. Fotheroy, M. G. Seiple, F. I. Troxell;
1871, H. A. Grim; 1873, J. . Erdman ; 1874, W. J.
Lochman, P. R, Palm, Samuel Youndt, Joshua Mor-
ton, A. J. F. Minnich; 1875, J. R. Davis, J. W.
Seiberling, W. 8. Kistler, J. W. Graver; 1876, I. C.
Erdman; 1877, 8. K. Berndt; 1882, 8. W. Berlin, €,
J. King, Eugene Beaver, Thomas Martin, 1. Horn,
A. N. Miller, F. W. Quigg, Koeh, F. C. Cooper,
In. P. Stine, W. R. Young.

The presidents of the society since 1865 have hoen
as follows: 1865, William B. Herbst; 1866, L. G.
Martin: 1867, H. K. Hartzell; 1868-70, I'. C, seiber-
ling ; 1871-73, Willinm B. Erdman; 1874, H. C.
Grim ; 187576, J. D. Erdman ; 1877, Samuel Young;
1878-79, I. . Erdmaun ; 1880-81, . G, Martin; 1882-
83, William B. Irdman. In 1865, J. P. Kohler was
seerctary, and sinee that time to the present date the
office has been held by P, L. Reichard.

The Lehigh Valley Medical Society was organized
in Bethlehem in 1881, with Dr. E. (3. Marfin as pres-
ident. Dr. Green, of Easton, was president in 1882,
aud Dr. R. Leonard, of Mauch Chunk, 1 1883.
From the first Dr. Charles McIntyre, of Faston, has
becn secretary.

CHAPTER XL

EDUCATIONAL MATTIRS.

Early Schools—Progress—IHolders of Permanent Tencliers® {Clertificates
—Comparative Stutement of 1855 and 1835,

TuE early German settlers in Pennsylvania, like
the New England pioneers in the West, as a rule no
sooner secured the material nccessities of life in
{lieir new homes than they began building up those
twin institutions of civilization, the school and the
church, and if the latter class of our national popu-
lation sooner succeeded in securing a high educa-
tional standard it must be borne in mind that they
were not obliged, like the Germans, to undergo a
revolution of language.

Almost without exception the earliest schools in
Lehigh County were established af or in conneetion
with the Latheran and German Reformed Churches,
and the pastor was often the secular teacher. * Fre-
quently,” says Professor Knauss, “the school-honse
preceded the ercetion of the church, and served
the double purpose of church and szchool. Thesc
schools were church schools so far as instruction
was concerned, but were not directly supported by
the church. ¥ach parent who sent children had
to pay in proportion to the total number of days sent.
In most cases thie teacher ‘ boarded ‘round,” which in
those days was no casy task.,” TIn but few instances
was the pupil afforded opportunity for studying any-
thing beyond reading, writing, and a little arithmetic.
The Germans excelled in musie, and at a very early
day introduced it in their churches and schools. To
the Moravians particularly were the people, as a whole,
indebted for the introduction of what at the time
was probably called advanced education. In their
schools, and in all of the others of early times, the
Gterman language was exclusively employed.

OFf the early schools in Lehigh County that in con-
nection with the Swamp Church, in Lower Milford,
was probably the fivst. Tt was established about 1725,
and remained in operation until comparatively recent
vears. The Schwenkfelders, about 1734, opened a
schiool at their meeting-house, near the Milford and
Montgomery County line (which, of conrse, did not
then exist, all being Bucks County). This was main-
tained until 1840, over a hundred years, and scrved,
as (id the former, a most beneficial end. In these
schools Tatin and Greek were the favorite studies,
and were taught as early ag 1765, The Mennonites,
some time between 1735 and 1740, erected in what is
now Upper Milford a small log building to serve as
school and church, It was divided into two apart-
ments by a hanging partition for this purpose. When
the attendance at religious services was very large,
this was raised and the two apartments thus thrown
into one. A shnilar huilding was erccted a little
later by the same sect in a fine grove between Coop-
crsburg and Centre Valley.



	083 Ch 10-6 pg 66
	084 Thomas Cooper
	085 William Herbst
	086 Aaron Miller
	087 Ch 10-7 pg 67
	088 Ch 10-8 pg 68
	089 Ch 10-9 pg 69
	090 Ch 10-10 pg 70
	091 Ch 10-11pg 71
	092 Ch 10-12 pg 72

